
Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes May 21, 2012 Page 1 
 

POLSON CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
CITY HALL – CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 
MONDAY, MAY 21, 2012 
 
ATTENDANCE:  City Commissioners:  John Campbell, Stephen Turner, Mike Lies, Dan Morrison, 
Fred Funke and Mayor Pat DeVries presiding.  City Manager Todd Crossett, City Clerk Cindy Dooley, 
Water & Sewer Superintendent Tony Porrazzo, Building & Planning Official Joyce Weaver and Police 
Chief Wade Nash present.   Others present (that signed in) Ric Smith, Rory Horning, Dennis Duty, 
Judy Preston, Janna Taylor, Murat Kalinyaprak and Margie Hendricks.  Commissioner Todd Erickson 
and City Attorney James Raymond were absent. 
 
Mayor Pat DeVries called the meeting to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 
APPROVAL OF PROPOSED AGENDA:  Mayor DeVries yielded the floor to Jules Clavadetscher who 
was speaking on agenda items 6, 7 & 8.  Mr. Clavadetscher asked that agenda item 8 be changed from a 
vote to just a discussion item since the finances of the Polson Redevelopment Agency (PRA) had changed.  
On items 6 & 7 the terms for the PRA are to be four (4) years, so he asked that item number 6 be changed 
to reflect a 4 year term and item number 7 would request a 4 year extension of terms for the remaining 
PRA members.  Mayor DeVries asked City Manager Crossett if these agenda items can be changed.  City 
Manager Crossett said that they could be changed.   Commissioner Lies made a motion to approve the 
agenda with the 11 items that are in the agenda packet even though only ten (10) items appear on the 
agenda itself and to include the changes to items 6, 7 & 8 proposed by Jules Clavadetscher, seconded 
by Commissioner Campbell.  Commission discussion:  None.  Public discussion:  Commissioner Lies 
had moved to add the scheduling of the City Manager’s evaluation to the agenda as a previous agenda 
draft had been posted containing that item.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. MAY 1 – MAY 17 CLAIMS 
Commissioner Lies moved to approve the consent agenda for May 1 – May 17 claims with the 
correction given to City Clerk Dooley prior to the meeting, seconded by Commissioner Funke.  
Commission discussion: None. Public discussion:  None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES MAY 7, 2012:   Commissioner Campbell moved to approve the 
commission meeting minutes of May 7, 2012, seconded by Commissioner Funke.  Commission 
discussion:  None.  Public discussion:  None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:   
 
City Manager Crossett thanked the McCann family and the Paul J. McCann Foundation for their donation 
of $25,000 to improve the Boettcher Park playground area. 
 
City staff picked up curbside organic waste on Friday, May 11th.  This is the second year that the City has 
picked up branches and leaves that residents have hauled to the curb.  It was very successful as 
numerous truck loads were hauled off. 
 
The City is looking to hire an interim building inspector to handle the critical workload for one to two 
months.  The services of Ronan’s building inspector may also be used.  There will be a formal hiring 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes May 21, 2012 Page 2 
 

process for a new building inspector.  Building and Planning Official Weaver has been helping out as-
well. 
 
The trail is in the process of being constructed along the waterfront at Sacajawea Park.   
 
City Manager Crossett was contacted by the television show Today in America hosted by Terry 
Bradshaw and has had several conversations with the producers in the last week.  They are looking for 
communities to showcase that are great places to live, work and play.  The show is broadcast on cable 
networks including CNN and the Discovery Channel.  The producers asked questions about Polson and 
the projects that the City is doing and indicated that they would like to work with the City.  There is a fee 
of $19,000 to participate in this venture.  This fee would give the City license to all materials connected 
with the television show to use and promote Polson.  City Manager Crossett has contacted the Greater 
Polson Community Foundation, the Chamber of Commerce, Polson business groups and others to see 
what interest there might be to contribute and participate in this.  City Manager Crossett recently 
attended a conference where economic trends for cities and towns were discussed.  The keynote speaker 
said that in not too many years we are going to have a shortage of qualified workers due to baby boomers 
retiring in large numbers.  This generation of workers wants to work where they want to live and 
companies will be forced to locate to these areas in order to retain a qualified labor force.  This provides 
an opportunity and challenge for cities and towns to make their area enticing to employees which will in 
turn bring new companies to town. 
 
Mayor DeVries asked if the Skyline Project has gone to bid.  City Manager Crossett replied that bids will 
be let on May 24th.  He is unsure of the deadline for bids but the intent is to have the contract in place so 
that construction can commence shortly after July 4th.   
 
Mayor DeVries asked about First Street.  City Manager Crossett replied that the Water and Sewer 
department has a fairly aggressive schedule for repairs this season so there will be quite a bit of work 
going on around town.  Water and Sewer Superintendent Porrazzo can give a more detailed update on 
the First Street Work.   
 
The State is still on track to do the refinishing project on 7th Street which is a state secondary highway. 
Commissioner Campbell said he saw a notice in the paper about the project.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

APPROVE ALICE OECHSLI TO FOUR YEAR TERM ON PRA:  Jules Clavadetscher spoke on behalf of 
the PRA (Polson Redevelopment Agency).  A letter from Alice Oechsli was given to the Commissioners 
prior to this evening’s meeting.  Jules Clavadetscher said her letter states that she wished to be appointed 
to the PRA and added that it would be for the four year term.  She is replacing Ivy McGowan who has 
decided to step down.  Commissioner Lies asked if the PRA member terms are staggered.  Jules 
Clavadetscher replied that originally the terms were staggered according to MCA 7-15-4234 but that they 
are not now.  Mayor DeVries clarified that all of the PRA member terms are ending at the same time. 
Commissioner Morrison made a motion to approve Alice Oeschli to a four year term on the PRA, 
seconded by Commissioner Funke. Commission discussion:  None.  Public discussion:  None.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF CURRENT PRA MEMBER TERMS FOR FOUR YEARS:  Jules 
Clavadetscher asked the Commission to extend the remaining PRA members terms for four years.  Those 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes May 21, 2012 Page 3 
 

members are Jules Clavadetscher, Lou Marchello, Rick LaPiana and Ken Avison.  Commissioner 
Morrison made a motion to approve an extension of the terms for the four continuing members as 
named for four years, seconded by Commissioner Funke.  Commission discussion:  None.  Public 
discussion:  None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
REVIEW OF PRA RECOMMENDATION FOR GAMBLES BUILDING; ESTABLISH PRIORITY FOR 
TIFD INVESTMENTS, DISCUSSION OF TIF REVENUE BONDS:  Jules Clavadetscher explained that 
the finances for the TIF (Tax Increment Financing) District have been revised.  He complimented City 
Treasurer Bonnie Manicke on her perseverance in regards to the County tax billing for the TIF district for 
2010 and 2011.  City Treasurer Manicke had expressed concern that the County had somehow over 
calculated the amount of tax revenue that the TIF district was to receive, but the County did not make 
any changes.  He also thanked City Clerk Dooley who looked into this and used her expertise in this area 
to find the error at the County and who got it corrected.  Based on this correction the TIF district will 
receive substantially less money than was projected.  According to information provided by City 
Treasurer Manicke, the TIF fund currently has, after the commitment of $85,000 to the trail system, a 
balance of $18,032.17.  Jules Clavadetscher stated that originally the City agreed not to ask for funds that 
were owed to the TIF prior to when the TIF was corrected in 2009, but that the County is now going to 
reallocate $20,000 out of the TIF for 2010 taxes to correct their error.  For 2012, the projection is for 
approximately $120,000 in tax revenue which could increase $8,000 to $10,000 per year over the life of the 
TIF district.  Mayor DeVries asked City Clerk Dooley if the City’s general fund would get any money 
from this error.  City Clerk Dooley explained that the error had to do with personal property.  As 
personal property is moved out of the TIF district because businesses close, the base value must remain.  
This base value is retained on a single property record and over the years causes a negative in the TIF tax 
receivables.  The County did not bill this record because it had a zero tax, but essentially it is reallocating 
money away from the TIF district and back to all the other funds (State, County, School and City) so yes, 
the City general fund will get some of this money.  Jules Clavadetscher stated that the error includes a 
$20,000 payback from 2010 and then City Clerk Dooley explained that another $26,000 for 2011 of which 
$13,000 has already been paid on the first half and another $13,000 which will be reduced on the second 
half.  Mr. Clavadetscher said it is difficult to “run the railroad” if you don’t know how much money you 
have.  Mayor DeVries further commented that this has been a difficult challenge!  Mayor DeVries asked if 
Jules Clavadetscher wanted to update the Commission on the Gambles building.  Jules Clavadetscher 
stated that at this time the PRA is considering a TIF Bond that would be paid back with TIF district 
revenues.  The interest rates are low at this time.  The projects that the TIF Bond would be used for must 
be specified in detail prior to going out for the bonds.  Mr. Clavadetscher stated that it is premature to 
discuss the Gambles building at this time.   
 
APPROVE THREE (3) YEAR TIME-EXTENSION REQUEST ON PRELIMINARY APPROVED 146 
LOT MISSION BAY VILLAGE PHASED SUBDIVISION:  Building and Planning Official Joyce Weaver 
presented information on the three year time extension request for the Mission Bay Village Phased 
subdivision and pointed out that it lies in XRZD on the west side of Hawk Drive and approximately 400 
feet north of Highway 35.  Mayor DeVries asked if the staff recommendation is to approve the extension 
request.  Building and Planning Official Weaver replied that the recommendation is for approval and that 
Montana HB0522 allows this extension request.  Commissioner Campbell made a motion to approve the 
three (3) year extension request for Mission Bay Village phased subdivision, seconded by 
Commissioner Turner.  Commission discussion:  None.  Public discussion:  Elsa Duford asked if Hawk 
Drive is a County or City road.  Commissioner Lies responded that at the time the subdivision was 
approved it was a County road but has since become a City road.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes May 21, 2012 Page 4 
 

APPROVE FINAL PLAT OF PRELIMINARY APPROVED RIDGEWATER PHASE 2, LOT 8C, A 
COMMERCIAL LOT:  Building and Planning Official Joyce Weaver presented information on 
Ridgewater Phase 2, Lot 8C.  The lot is located on the west side of Highway 93 and is accessed from 
Ridgewater Drive.  Mayor DeVries asked if it is located next to the Mission Valley Aquatics swimming 
pool.  Building and Planning Official Weaver said that the swimming pool is in an area north of this lot. 
The total lot size is 6 acres.  The Greens Beans coffee stand is to the south of this lot.  Building and 
Planning Official Weaver pointed out that the agenda packet included the City Council meeting minutes 
of May 2, 2005 which granted the preliminary approval of the Ridgewater/Cougar Ridge Master Plan 
Development and requested that each Phase be presented separately to the City Commission for final 
approval.  Each Phase is to have 30 lots or less, as restricted by Ordinance 596, for 30 water/sewer hook-
ups per year, per developer/owner.  The agenda packet also included the applicant’s request for final 
approval, the conditions for final approval and explanations on how those conditions have been met.  
There was also a separate applicant’s bundle that was given to the Commissioners that included detailed 
history and information on how the conditions have been met.  Mayor DeVries asked if the staff 
recommendation is for final plat approval.  Building and Planning Official Weaver replied that the 
recommendation is for approval.  Mayor DeVries asked if the conditions have all been met.  Building and 
Planning Official Weaver stated that the conditions of approval first stated in the preliminary approval in 
May, 2005 have been met.  City Manager Crossett clarified that the original conditions are the only 
conditions that the applicant is required to fulfill; there can be no new conditions imposed.  
Commissioner Funke made a motion to approve the final plat on Ridgewater Phase 2, Lot 8C, 
seconded by Commissioner Morrison.  Commission discussion:  Commissioner Campbell asked if 
anything further needs to be addressed on drainage for these lots.  On page 6 of the applicant’s bundle 
Commissioner Campbell read the following: “A water runoff management, drainage and grading plan(s) 
shall be submitted, and, reviewed and approved by the City Engineer and Water/Sewer Superintendent 
before final approval of each Phase, and for any other areas to be disturbed.”  Commissioner Campbell 
asked Building and Planning Official Weaver if this is per lot or per Phase.  She replied that it is per 
Phase.  Applicant Dennis Duty further explained that there has been quite a bit of testing done on the 
soils with the City Engineer, Shari Johnson.  The purchaser of the lot will be required to go through an 
additional review with DEQ to show how they will manage their stormwater with the impervious 
surfaces that they will have on their site.  Commissioner Campbell asked Dennis Duty if there is currently 
a drainage system for this lot.  Dennis Duty replied that no there is not as the lot is fairly flat.  
Commissioner Lies commented that he would like to receive these large packets sooner as it is difficult to 
read through them in such a short amount of time.  Building and Planning Official Weaver responded 
that in her opinion the City is short-handed staff-wise which causes the delays.  Public discussion:  
Margie Hendricks commented that she has followed the Ridgewater/Cougar Ridge development very 
closely since it received preliminary approval in 2005.  The Ridgewater/Cougar Ridge subdivision is the 
largest subdivision that Polson has with 145 single family lots, 108 multi-family lots and 60 commercial 
lots. The first Phase received final approval in December, 2007.  Final approval for Phase 2 was completed 
in November, 2008.  At that time there was no mention of a lot 8C and she has not found any 
documentation which connects this lot to Phase 2.  She reminded the Commission that the plat map was 
materially changed recently.  The project has three Phases so she stated that this lot must be in Phase 3.  
In the original preliminary approval of the Master Plan there was a condition #49 which stated that each 
Phase had to come before the CCPB (City County Planning Board) for approval.  This condition was 
struck down because it conflicted with the Polson Development Code which states that the Phase must 
come back for approval by the CCPB only if a material change is made.  Margie Hendricks suggested that 
a material change has been made and this should be brought to the CCPB for their approval.   Margie 
Hendricks presented maps of the original plat and revised plat to the Commission for their review.  
Dennis Duty responded to Ms. Hendricks’ comments by saying that a material change is defined as an 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes May 21, 2012 Page 5 
 

increase in the number of lots in a subdivision.  Also, Dennis Duty commented that this is Phase 2 
commercial.  Phase 1 had a residential portion consisting of 21 lots and a commercial portion consisting 
of 7 lots.  Mayor DeVries asked Dennis Duty if this Phase 2 commercial combined lots together.  He 
replied that several lots were combined.  City Manager Crossett added that the applicant can change 
Phase names and break it into smaller pieces and may opt to do so based on the economic conditions.  
Elsa Duford commented that the change in the plat map has caused a lot of confusion.  It appears to her 
that this lot, 8C, was in Phase 1 commercial and now it appears to be in this Phase 2 commercial.  She is 
wondering if this is the same lot.  Dennis Duty replied that this is a different lot and was not in Phase 1.  
Elsa Duford also commented that there was a great deal of discussion regarding 15th Avenue as an access 
that would be part of Phase 2 and she is wondering if this would now affect 15th Avenue.  Dennis Duty 
explained that there is an agreement that 15th Avenue will not be brought into the subdivision for any 
Phase of Ridgewater.  Murat Kalinyaprak asked if information that was given to the City Manager at City 
Hall was passed on to the Commissioners.  City Manager Crossett responded that Margie Hendricks had 
information and questions that she wanted the City Manager to review.  He did review that information 
and determined that it did not constitute a problem and so did not pursue it further.  Murat Kalinyaprak 
commented that it is difficult to send communications to the Commissioners.  He stated that when the 
approval for Phase 1 was approved it was stated that there were 21 residential lots and 7 commercial lots.  
When the Phase 2 was approved in 2008, Mr. Kalinyaprak stated that there was no mention of 
commercial lots.   This lot 8C is adjacent to lot 7C in Phase 1.  He said the boundary line adjustment done 
on Certificate of Survey 6884RB was illegal and was signed off on by former Building Inspector Ron 
Melvin.  This COS moved boundaries and created additional lots in his opinion.  He said the Commission 
is being fooled into doing another illegal action by the applicant and claimed that represents a pattern of 
activity that the Commission should stop.  Dennis Duty replied that he takes exception to Murat 
Kalinyaprak’s comments.  He stated that this has been done by the book and every condition has been 
met per the Commission.  He said this is not an appropriate place to talk like that; he has been trying to 
make things happen in this economy and those types of comments are a negative to our community.  Ric 
Smith urged the Commission to follow the law and approve the final plat.  All of the conditions have 
been met.  Ric Smith further commented that there are a handful of citizens that have been opposed to 
everything that Dennis Duty has wanted to do.  He said that Mission Bay has been a beautiful project and 
it has done great things for the City of Polson.  Rory Horning commented that people have the right to 
say what they want. Mayor DeVries asked if there was anyone wishing to speak about the final plat 
approval.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
SCHEDULE CITY MANAGER SIX MONTH EVALUATION AND DISCUSS PROCEDURE:  Mayor 
DeVries questioned what everyone’s schedules were and that Commissioner Erickson had an evaluation 
form that she was not sure everyone had a chance to review. Mayor DeVries called for a special meeting 
on Wednesday, May 30, 2012 at 7:30 pm at the City Hall Council Chambers.  This would follow the Ward 
1 town hall meeting that is being held at 6:00 pm.  Mayor DeVries said that in the past the City staff has 
been asked for their input and wondered if there was a formal process or if a notice would be sent out.  
Commissioner Lies made a motion to approve the special meeting on Wednesday, May 30th at 7:30 pm 
in the City Hall Council Chambers for the City Manager evaluation, seconded by Commissioner 
Funke.  Commission discussion:  None.  Public discussion:  Ken Avison asked if this would be an open or 
closed meeting.  Mayor DeVries deferred to City Manager Crossett, who responded that it would be a 
closed meeting.  Ken Avison commented that he works with the PBC (Polson Beautification Committee) 
and was glad to see the clean-up activities that City Manager Crossett mentioned earlier.  The PBC had 
done their cleanup last Sunday and was heartened to see that the City Street crew had come along with 
the Sweeper in the early morning and picked up all the debris.  He was very appreciative of the 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes May 21, 2012 Page 6 
 

cooperation between the downtown association, PBC and the City that has been shown.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON SIGNIFICANT MATTERS TO THE PUBLIC:   
 
Murat Kalinyaprak said that he has read about the personal problems of a City employee.  He has many 
questions and urged the City Commission to start their own investigation into this matter.  He also asked 
if the three minute clock was donated to the City.  Mayor DeVries responded that the clock was donated 
to the City. 
 
Police Chief Nash commented that regarding Mr. Kalinyaprak’s comments, that everything is public 
record and can be looked up.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 
 
      ________________________________________________ 
      Mayor Pat DeVries 
__________________________________________ 
Attest:  Cindy Dooley, City Clerk 


